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From the PresidentΩǎ 5Ŝǎƪ 
 

It is almost 12 months since my appointment as President, which has been sometimes stressful but 
mostly enjoyable. 
  
I think one of the most enjoyable moments was to finally hear that we will have our very own 
accommodation within the new library.  ¢Ƙƛǎ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ǘƘŜ ǎƻŎƛŜǘȅΩǎ dream for many years and finally we 
are nearing the light at the end of the tunnel. 
 
Our committee has worked well together and I am very grateful to Beth Venning for stepping into the 
Secretary's position when Cheryl had to take time off due to other commitments. 
 
We finally filled the position of Editor.  A big thank you goes to Elaine Howard who joined our Society 
this year and promptly volunteered for the position.  This is her first edition and it is full of wonderful 
stories.  Thank you to all members who supplied a story to Elaine and made her debut a little less 
complicated.  The PHT is a way of getting your family history story or brick wall out there to like-minded 
family historians.  It is sent to more than 60 other family history societies all over Australia and the 
United Kingdom.  So, put pen to paper and give Elaine your story, she will be happy to assist you.  Don't 
forget to fill out your Member's Interests and have it published in the December 2012 issue. 
 
The Roma Robbins Award will also be awarded for the best story in our PHT, so to be eligible you must 
have your story published in the next issue. 
 
Now a plea for help!  During the past 12 months we have raised in excess of $2,000 from our Bunnings 
Sausage Sizzles.  Thanks to Bunnings we have been allocated a fundraiser per month.  Unfortunately, we 
had to cancel one event due to the lack of volunteers and may have to cancel them altogether if 
members are not willing to give us one hour per month.  If this happens our annual fees and door fees 
will have to increase to enable us to operate and fund the purchases of resources.  This fundraiser also 
assists with paying for storage facilities and for the meeting room at the Youth Centre, insurance for our 
members, and the list goes on.  Our committee put in many hours of work behind the scenes just to 
organise the monthly workshop let alone the fundraising, so please help your committee to help you, 
the member. 
 
Our mini workshops have been a success and our informal brick wall chat held at the May workshop was 
commended so this may become a regular event. 
 
At our July workshop we will have Derrilin from Nowra Library giving us a talk on how to navigate the 
Shoalhaven Library catalogue online and what family history resources can be found in our local 
libraries.  Both topics will assist you with your research.  So please pencil this one in your diary.  
 
We have organised a trip to the State Records at Kingswood in August.  This has always been a great 
couple of days in the past.  The staff at the archives are very helpful and members have always come 
home with additional information and aching jaws caused by too much chatting and laughter. 
 
Our AGM will be held at our July meeting.  We will be looking for a Librarian and an Activities Officer.  If 
you would like to take up a position, please see our Secretary Cheryl. 
 
I look forward to another successful 2012.  
 
Elaine Holloway 
President  
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Welcome to new members 
 

We extend the warmest welcome to the most recent additions to the family tree of the Milton Ulladulla 
Family History Society Inc. May their branches be full and bear much fruit. 

 

(11356) Susan COLE    (11357)  Elaine HOWARD 
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Snippets from the Government Gazette, New South Wales 1884 
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Cemetery 
 
¢ƘŜ ŘƛŎǘƛƻƴŀǊȅ ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜǎ ά/ŜƳŜǘŜǊȅέ ŀǎ ŀ άǇƭŀŎŜ ǘƻ ǎƭŜŜǇέ ƻǊ ŀ άǇƭŀŎŜ ŦƻǊ ōǳǊƛŀƭ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŀŘΦέ 
 
When I was a young girl, it was the usual thing for my mum and dad to visit Botany Cemetery once a 
ƳƻƴǘƘ ǘƻ Ǉǳǘ ŦƭƻǿŜǊǎ ƻƴ ƻǳǊ ŦŀƳƛƭȅΩǎ ƎǊŀǾŜ ŀƴŘ ǘƻ ǘǊƛƳ ǳǇ ǘƘŜ ƎǊŀǎǎ ƻǊ ǘƛŘȅ ǳǇ ǘƘŜ ǇƭƻǘΦ  Lǘ ƛǎ ƴƻǘ ŘƻƴŜ 
nowadays to visit as often as we did, for even though a memorial stone or a plaque is placed upon the 
gravesite, we know these days, that it is only their bodies in that plot, their spirit really lies within us. 
 
L ƎŜǘ ǎƻ ǎŀŘ ǿƘŜƴ L Ǿƛǎƛǘ Ƴȅ ǇŀǊŜƴǘΩǎ ƎǊŀǾŜ ƛƴ .ƻǘŀƴȅ ŀƴŘ ǎŜŜ ǿƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǾŀƴŘŀƭǎ ƘŀǾŜ ŘƻƴŜ ǘƻ ǎƻƳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 
gravesites.  People have put a lot of money and love into these sites with beautiful angels, poems and 
ǘƘƛƴƎǎ ƭƛƪŜ ǘƘƛǎ ŀƴŘ L ǎǘƛƭƭ ƭƻƻƪ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŦƛǊŜƳŀƴΩǎ ƘŜƭƳŜǘ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǎ ƴŜŀǊ Ƴȅ ƎǊŀƴŘƳƻǘƘŜǊΩǎ ǎƛǘŜΦ  ¢Ƙŀǘ ƛǎ ƴƻǿ 
weather worn these days but I still love to see it. 
  
When I was asked if I would photograph the graves at Fishermans Paradise, I jumped at the opportunity 
to do so.  It is a lonely spot off the highway and armed with a notebook and pen I proceeded to write 
down the information, photograph the graves and the inscriptions.  I took an interest in how I could get 
the best angle and even went back twice to make sure that my photographs were better than the 
previous ones. 
 
Some of the graves had lichen on the writing and covering their names.  I quite liked the green lichen on 
the headstone; however it was not good when trying to work out who was there.  I know I did the wrong 
thing, but I armed myself with bleach, a bucket of water and a cloth and cleaned up the headstone.  
What a difference it made and the stone came up lovely and shining.  I felt as if I was the caretaker of 
that grave. 
 
{ƻƳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƘƛƭŘǊŜƴΩǎ ƎǊŀǾŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǎŀŘ ǘƻ ǎŜŜ, the toys on the grave and one of a young man who lost 
his life in a car accident at Wheelbarrow Rd and the long story written on his stone.  What a thrill it was 
to see these photographs put together on a disc and some detailed work added to it by Michael 
McMahon and another thrill that we were able to sell this disc for our Society. 
 
Recently we had a request put to our Society for information on two different families from the 
Mollymook Cemetery.  Once again armed with my camera, I made my way on a very windy day to see if I 
could find these gravestones. 
 
At the Cemetery at Mollymook it was hard to try and locate these gravestones.  I spotted one family 
name that was familiar to our area and from that I was able to work out that this was a Catholic Section. 
 
With leaves blowing in my face, my hair standing on edge and weaving in and out of sections of graves 
and even a young boy on a bicycle asking me why was I in the Cemetery with a camera, I plodded on to 
find these names.   
 
I finally found one family name and I managed to take several photos and even found another person 
with the same surname, it may or may not be connected to the one I was suppose to find.  
 
I was given a small map and even that was a little hard to follow, then that may be me, after all my 
cousin told me I am the worldΩs worse navigator.  After being out in the wind for quite a while I finally 
found the last two graves and photographed them. 
 
It was a real pleasure to be able to email these two families and let them know that I had managed to 
find these graves, even photographed landmarks for them to be able to identify where to go should they 
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ever visit the graves and I asked them for a small donation to help with our society.  I felt by doing this 
my trouble was well worth it. 
 
When you belong to the Family History Society, walking around in graveyards is not a morbid thing for 
us to do.  It connects us with our past generation and strange as it seems we do get excited to see the 
names we are searching for appear on these headstones.   
 
When I was searching for my great grandfather and grandmother in Leominster, Hereford my cousin 
and I were there on a wet rainy day with grass up to our ankles trying to find our ancestor.  It was almost 
the last row of Stones when we found it, the feeling of excitement at locating it and having our photo 
taken standing behind the headstone was rewarding.   

 
 
I hope that the photographs that I have taken will connect someone else to their families and I plan on 
going to visit more gravesites and doing exactly the same thing again. 
 

Submitted by Christine Moss (5218) 
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BOOK REVIEW 

 Ȱ#ÈÒÏÎÉÃÌÅÓ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ #ÅÌÔÓȱ ÂÙ )ÁÉÎ :ÁÃÚÅË. 
 
One of the interesting and beautifully illustrated books held in the Milton Ulladulla Family History Soc. 
library gives a history of Celtic culture.  Celts were a loosely knit group of tribes with a common culture 
and a common language, dating back to the Hallstatt culture, c.700-500 BC, around upper Austria and 
Bavaria.  Lƴ ǘƘŜ сǘƘ ŎŜƴǘǳǊȅ ǘƘŜǊŜ ŀǊŜ ǊŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜǎ ǘƻ άƪŜƭǘƻƛέ ƛƴ ǎƻǳǘƘŜǊƴ CǊŀƴŎŜΣ ŀƴŘ ŀ ŎŜƴǘǳǊȅ ƭŀǘŜǊ 
around the Danube.  Later these communities stretched from Turkey and the Balkans to Western 
Europe.  They were a fierce people and in 386 BC they sacked Rome and in 279 BC, Delphi. 

 
Between 480-50 BC their craftsmen developed a highly distinctive style of decoration ς curvilinear 
motifs ς in metalwork.  There are photographs of historic decorative neck-rings ς torcs ς dating back to 
the Hattstatt era, pottery, and bronze cauldrons dating back to the Bronze Age.  Some of the designs 
were later adapted and used by Christians. 
 
Though they left no written records, their story tellers were trained to remember huge repertoires (over 
350 stories), as is documented by a manuscript from a 6th century Ulster king.  Caesar wrote about their 
war chariots and weapons. 
 
The book gives many examples of early tales from Wales, Brittany, Scotland, Ireland, some of which 
inspired medieval Arthurian legends.  These tales were told by bards. Classical authors recognize 3 
different classes of learned men in Celtic society, the druids, the bards and the vates (or filidh).  Each 
had a different function and the bards were principally concerned with poetry and music.  Bardic schools 
survived after the Celtic era and their existence saw the creation of the Eisteddfod.  This artistic contest 
dates back to 1176 and similar contests were held during the Middle Ages, being revived on a regular 
basis in 1789. The modern National Eisteddford Association was founded in 1880. 
 
There is an interesting reference to Pictish symbols, which have yet to be fully deciphered, and which 
are to be found on over 200 decorated stone slabs.  Historians show a link between Pictish carving and 
the decorations in some of the illuminated Gospel Books. 
 
There are photos of beautifully carved chess pieces dating back to mid-twelfth century, some of which 
were discovered in a sandbank on the Isle of Lewis in 1831.  These are thought to have been luxury 
items for the use of the upper classes. 
 
And you may have read of the Carnac Stones in Brittany ς one of the wonders of ancient Europe ς which 
predate the earliest Celtic settlers but figure strongly in many legends. 
 
{ƻΣ ŀ ōƻƻƪ ǿƻǊǘƘ ōƻǊǊƻǿƛƴƎΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜǊŜΩǎ ŜǾŜƴ ŀ ǇǊƻƴǳƴŎƛŀǘƛƻƴ ƎǳƛŘŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ōŀŎƪΗ 
 

Submitted by Jan Sullivan (9321) 
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VALE VALERIE ELIZABETH CHUBB 

 
It was with sadness that members of the society were met with the news of the death of long time 
member, Valerie Chubb in March of this year.  She joined our society in July 2006 and served on the 
committee as treasurer, a lovely lady who will be sadly missed by all who knew her. 
 
The following eulogy was given by her son Garrie at her funeral and is reprinted here with his kind 
permission. 
 

Eulogy for Mum (Val Chubb) 
 
²ŜƭŎƻƳŜ ǘƻ ȅƻǳ ŀƭƭΦ  L ŀƳ DŀǊǊƛŜΣ ±ŀƭŜǊƛŜΩǎƻƴΣ ŀƴŘ L ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ƻŦŦŜǊŜŘ ǘƘŜ ƻǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘȅ ǘƻ ǎǇŜŀƪ ŦƻǊ ŀ ŦŜǿ 
minutes about my mother whose life we are celebrating here today. 
 
Mum would be pleased and honoured to see that all of you could make it here to share in this with us 
this morning.  In addition to your presence here, we have received many expression of condolences 
from people mum had met throughout her life. 
 
Every child sees their mum differently.  I will speak about how I saw mum.  As a mother she was always 
exceedingly generous with her time.  She gave up time each day to drive us to and from swimming 
training, getting up at 5:00am to take us to the morning sessions, and doing the same in the afternoon.  
In the middle of winter when it was very cold in the mornings mum would still get up early and warm all 
our clothes in front of the heater so we would not be cold.  Then there were the swimming carnivals and 
other competitions that took us most of the weekend.  The amount of her time she gave up to hang 
around while we competed.  Even though she suffered a serious illness in when she had a cerebral 
aneurism in late 1971 requiring correction using some delicate surgery by the esteemed neurosurgeon 
Dr Segalov at RPA, mum recovered and was soon back driving us to training and competitions. 
 
Mum was always skilful.  She was particularly adept at knitting, firstly with needles which looked to me 
as a child were going at breakneck speed, and later in life using a machine.  She always had a long list of 
things that needed to be made, and no matter how complex or intricate the design or pattern was, it 
was always completed and looked professional.   
 
Mum spent most of her life living firstly in Cabramatta, and she married Dad at Canley Vale.  She must 
certainly have seen some significant changes over that time.  But there came a time where a seachange 
was required, and when she retired from work at Fairfield RSL after some 30 odd years a quieter 
location beckoned.  The tranquillity of Cunjurong Point was her chosen place. 
 
It was here that she developed two new passions.  The first was to trace the family tree.  She pursued 
this with enthusiasm and vigour, joining with a group of likeminded genealogists who shared their 
knowledge and I know enjoyed each others company.  She also travelled extensively and found relatives 
that would have remained lost to mine and later generations.  Without mums effort a record of our 
heritage would never have been revealed to myself and the rest of the family. 
 
Along with this mum had to learn how to use the computer, something that younger generations take 
for granted, but is a significant challenge for those from an earlier era.  I can see my brothers raised 
ŜȅŜōǊƻǿǎ ŀǎ ƘŜ ǎŀƛŘ άL ƘŀǾŜ ŦƛȄŜŘ ƳǳƳΩǎ ŎƻƳǇǳǘŜǊ ŀƎŀƛƴέΦ 
 
Her second passion was the growing of orchids.  It was with great pride that she phoned me one 
Saturday afternoon having won a prize at a local show, this being the first one she had ever entered.  It 
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was the phone call the next day that was a surprise when she told me the strong wind had blown the 
prize winning flower off the plant. 
 
Finally, and perhaps one to the things she most enjoyed, was the phone calls or visits from her 
grandchildren and great grandchildren.  While the tyranny of distance made it difficult to visit all that 
often, I know the joy that she derived when my daughters Maddie and Lucy phone Nanny each week to 
tell her about school, swimming, dancing, birthday parties and other things that occupy their life. 
 
My mother liked things that were clear and uncomplicated and I would like to close with a simple 
sentence.  She will live in our memories and our hearts forever, and I am proud to be her son. 
Thank you. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

ELIZABETH 1828 
 
Member Margaret McIntosh was able to organise a visit from her distant cousin Suzanne Voytas, to talk 
ŀōƻǳǘ ƘŜǊ ōƻƻƪ ά9ƭƛȊŀōŜǘƘ мунуέ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ aŀǊŎƘ нлмн ǿƻǊƪǎƘƻǇΦ 
 
hƴ мн WŀƴǳŀǊȅ муну ǘƘŜ ŦŜƳŀƭŜ ŎƻƴǾƛŎǘ ǎƘƛǇ ά9ƭƛȊŀōŜǘƘέ ǎŀƛƭŜŘ ƛƴǘƻ tƻǊǘ WŀŎƪǎƻƴ ǿƛǘƘ мфн LǊƛǎƘ ǿƻƳŜƴ 
and 16 of their children.  ¢ƘŜ ŀǳǘƘƻǊƛǘƛŜǎ ƘŀŘ ƭŀōŜƭŜŘ ǘƘŜƳ ΨǘƘŜ ǿƻǊǎǘ ŀƴŘ Ƴƻǎǘ ǘǳǊōǳƭŜƴǘΩΦ  However, 
most of the women were to prove this so wrong, as their lives moved in many directions and they 
adapted to life in a strange land.  Some lived long enough to know their grandchildren, a few became 
wealthy while some did succumb to unfortunate circumstances and bad habits. 

 
At least 40 of the women had family members in the colony or who were expected to arrive and 
Governor Bourke said that probably quite a lot of women had committed crimes in the hope of also 
being transported and reunited with their partners.  55 of the women were forced to leave 107 children 
in Ireland.  IƻǇŜŦǳƭƭȅ {ǳȊŀƴƴŜΩǎ ōƻƻƪ ǿƛƭƭ ŜƴŀōƭŜ ǎƻƳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŦŀƳƛƭƛŜǎ ƻŦ ǘƘƻǎŜ ǊŜƳŀƛƴƛƴƎ ǘƻ ŜǎǘŀōƭƛǎƘ 
contact with the descendants of the women who were forced to leave them behind.  
 
{ǳȊŀƴƴŜΩǎ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǿŀǎ ǎǇŀǊƪŜŘ ōȅ a visit about 2001 to Cork City Gaol to trace her ancestor Eliza 
hΩ.ǊƛŜƴΣ ŀƴŘ ǿƘƛƭŜ ǘƘŜǊŜ ǎƘŜ ǿŀǎ ŜƴŎƻǳǊŀƎŜŘ ǘƻ ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ ŀƭƭ ǘƘŜ ǿƻƳŜƴ ǿƘƻ ǿŜǊŜ ŀǎǎŜƳōƭŜŘ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ 
CŜƳŀƭŜ 5ŜǇƻǘ ƛƴ /ƻǊƪ ŦƻǊ ǘǊŀƴǎǇƻǊǘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ά9ƭƛȊŀōŜǘƘέΦ  The society has a copy of the book and 
thoroughly recommends it as a valuable reference work. 
 

Jan Sullivan (9321) 
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Author Suzanne Voytas 
with her book άElizabeth 
1828έ and MUFHSI 
member Margaret 
McIntosh at the March 
Workshop. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOOK REVIEW 

Shopkeepers and Shoppers  - A Social History of Retailing in New South 
Wales from 1788.  

 (Until the mid 1980s)   
Author: Frances Pollon.  

 
Frances Pollon, a well trained social history writer whose ancestors were retailers, began trading in 1788 
and came to Australia in the gold rush. 
 
Under Governor Arthur Philip and with the arrival of the First Fleet no shops were planned and no 
official coinage existed.  The government store stocked grain and meat as necessary for survival which 
had to be paid for by Bank Draft drawn on London.  The complete lack of shops meant the early 
colonists had to depend on relatives and friends in England - even for buttons and a yard or two of 
ribbon. 
 
Nothing changed under Governor Bligh's' leadership so it was up to Governor Macquarie, a progressive 
man, who ordered the dirt tracks to be improved and named - hence Pitt, Castlereagh, Bathurst, 
Liverpool, York, Clarence, Kent and Sussex Streets. 
 
Macquarie's next progressive move was to establish a coinage system by importing silver Spanish dollars 
and creating 2 coins unique to New South Wales by punching the centre out of the dollar - creating the 
holey dollar - and then in 1817 Macquarie organised the first official bank. 
 
The Horden family arrived in 1823 and David Jones in 1834, but both started off in a very small way - 
alongside the other small-time retailers - families who mostly lived in their shops which often resembled 
a caravan - the idea being to move on if business was not forthcoming from the first chosen site. These 
were very humble operations, carried on by one man or a couple at most.  
 
By the mid 1830s the shopkeepers started to advertise in the papers - although only one line ads - it was 
1890 before a full page ad appeared in The Sydney Morning Herald for David Horden's "Great Sale of 
Drapery". 
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Gas lamps and street lighting came in 1841 and 1842 saw Sydney Town officially become a city - it was 
usually referred to as "the big village". 
 
However, a depression set in during the 1840s and many leading businessmen were struggling to 
survive. The gold rush near Bathurst in 1851 was a saving grace, with the first railway line being built 
from Sydney to Parramatta - Sydney's population had soared to 96,00. 
 
Frances gives much detail of which suburbs were blossoming and which streets attracted various kinds 
of retail shops. 
 
Then another depression hit in the 1890s and on 10 July 1901 Anthony Horden's shop in the Haymarket 
caught fire and was a blackened ruin within a few hours. Frances devotes a whole chapter to various 
shop fires and the efforts made to improve the fire brigade. 
 
In the early 1900s mass produced clothing arrived, with our season being opposite to Britain's it gave 
the opportunity for fashions to arrive after the long voyage at the appropriate time of year. 
The outbreak of the 1st World War threw the Australian economy back to restrictions and staff 
problems. 
 
Post War years had led to soldier settlements which opened up local suburban areas, though retailing 
developed very slowly through to the mid 1980s. 
 
All through the book Frances gives much genealogical information on shop keepers and some of their 
staff, both in the city of Sydney, in 11 suburbs including Redfern and Newtown where her own ancestors 
worked - and then in 34 outback places - one being Wellington where Frances mentions the Mellick 
family who were drapers, still conducting their store in the mid 1980s. 
 
One criticism I would have is that the index is far from complete - if you have an ancestor from a 
particular area you would need to find where that area is covered in the book. 
 
An excerpt from the book reads "Customers were seated by the Floor Walker. They were cared for in a 
unique way - helped in clothing; fitted into corsets, hand massaged into gloves, shown the best angles 
for the wearing of hats - in short - they were 'specialised'.  

 
Reviewed by Meg Hammond. (5225) 
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Lance Bombardier Arthur PARKER - NX191449 
 A.A. A/MLC Defence Rabaul on the island of New Britain, Australian Territory of 

New Guinea. 
Lost at sea - 1 July 1942 onboard "Montevideo Maru".  

 
Arthur "Toss" Parker was eighteen years and one month 
old on 4th April 1941 when he enlisted in WWII.  He was 
too young to join the A.I.F., so he volunteered for the 
Anti Aircraft Anti Military Landing Craft Defence Force, 
Rabaul.  After his compulsory training and pre-
embarkation leave, he embarked on HMAT Neptuna on 
7 August 1941 and disembarked Rabaul on 16 
September 1941 along with two officers and fifty-two 
other comrades of his unit later known as A.A. Battery, 
Rabaul.  These boys had been too young to be sent 
beyond the bounds of Australia with the regular army, 
but had been sent to the supposed safety of an 
Australian territory. 
 
Once in Rabaul they took their gun position, with two 3-
inch guns and obsolete ring-sight telescope, at Frisbee 
Ridge, silhouetted as it was against both north and 
southern skylines.  For Rabaul lay in what was virtually a 
gigantic crater; only from this ridge could the guns 
command anything like the requisite 360 degrees angle 
of traverse.  This position was also conspicuous from 

land, sea, and air. 
 
After the outbreak of war in the Pacific began on 7th December 1941 when the Japanese attacked Pearl 
Harbour, Malaya, and the Philippines with the Japanese already having bases in their Micronesian 
colonies, there was nothing between the Japanese and New Guinea.  By January 1942, the Japanese had 
over 20,000 troops to the north of Australia - from Malaya and Singapore through Java, Ambon and 
Timor to New Guinea.  With most trained units in the war against Germany, the Australians could do 
little to support the men in New Guinea facing the advancing Japanese. 
 
On 4th January 1942, the Japanese dropped their first bombs on Rabaul and other raids followed.  On 
22nd January, 120 Japanese aircraft attacked Rabaul.  Both the bravery and the ineffectiveness of the 
Australian pilots in their Wirraways (normally used as trainers), against modern fighters were obvious.  
Heavy pre-invasion bombing continued on 23rd January.  That night at 11.40pm the Japanese landed 
barges of 5,000 forces.  As dawn broke, the Australians could see the harbour and the channel dense 
with Japanese shipping.  Any sign of Australian resistance or movement attracted low-flying Japanese 
aircraft and naval fire.  The Australians were told there would be no retreat.  However, overwhelmed by 
numbers and firepower, groupǎΩ cut-off and communications breaking down, the order changed to 
'every man for himself'. 
 
The Japanese gathered over 1,000 prisoners of war and civilian internees in Rabaul.  Apart from knowing 
that Rabaul had 'fallen', the Australian public knew almost nothing of what happened in Rabaul.  Then in 
April, newspapers began publishing reports from the men who had escaped.  
 
These were alarming as they made public the killing of over 150 Australian prisoners of war at Tol 
plantation, south of Rabaul.  Then the Australians were surprised when Japanese aircraft over Port 
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Moresby dropped bundles of letters from prisoners in Rabaul.  Most of the prisoners - including nurses 
and civilians - said 'they were being treated reasonably'.  The Australians now had contradictory 
information; some men were killed and because of a strange act of enemy chivalry, others were known 
to be alive.  That was all most Australians were to know for another three years.  
 
War reports state that on 22 June 1942, the civilian and military prisoners in Rabaul, except the officers 
and nurses, were loaded on the Montevideo Maru.  Just before they left, they were able to tell the 
officers that they were on their way to Hainan Island.  Off the Filipino coast near Luzon, early on the 
morning of 1 July, she encountered the torpedoes of the American submarine SS Sturgeon.  Not one of 
the 845 prisoners of war or the 208 civilians survived.  Most of the crew and guards reached the shore in 
the Philippines where Filipino guerrillas killed many.  Only 3 Japanese guards and 17 crew had survived.  
 
Japanese authorities received confirmation of the sinking of the Montevideo Maru early in 1943 but 
never advised Australian authorities.  It was October 1945 when the translated nominal roll was 
received by the authorities in Canberra.  Telegrams were sent to the families confirming the deaths of 
the men and boys from the 2/22nd Battalion, 1st Independent Company, the Fortress Artillery, Signals 
Units, Number 17 Anti-tank Battery, the Anti Aircraft Artillery, Number 19 Special Dental Unit, 
detachments from New Guinea Volunteer Rifles, 2/10 Field Ambulance, Ordnance Corps units, the 8th 
Division Supply Column, the Canteen Services Headquarters New Guinea Area, the Royal Australian Air 
Force, the Royal Australian Navy and Australian civilians.  
 

 
 

Australian War Memorial Image of the Montevideo Maru.  
 

By the end of October 1945 families of those named on the Montevideo Maru nominal roll received 
correspondence stating; "It is with deep regret that I have to inform you that the transmission of the 
nominal roll of the Japanese vessel Montevideo Maru which was lost with all personnel after leaving 
Rabaul in June 1942 shows that [name] was aboard the vessel and I desire to convey to you the profound 
sympathy of the Commonwealth Government for External Territories."  
 
It is unknown how Toss lost his life, whether he was one of those massacred at Tol Plantation, perished 
in the jungle of New Britain whilst trying to escape, or drowned due to the sinking of the Montevideo 
Maru.  The nominal roll retrieved from Japan cannot be confirmed, as there are many discrepancies. 
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Some families of civilians were told that their loved one was on the nominal roll but after returning to 
Rabaul and talking to their native friends they were told of his execution.    

 
The sinking of the Montevideo Maru is the greatest single disaster suffered by Australians in World War 
II.  However, until recently, it was rarely referred to on Anzac Day or other days of national 
remembering. 
 
In at least two ABC TV presentations, it was stated that the tragic loss of HMAS Sydney, with the deaths 
of 635 Australian, was 'the greatest single loss' of the war.  Family members who lost someone among 
the 1035 Australians who died when the Montevideo Maru sank feel, when they hear this, that their 
sense that no one has heard of this event has been confirmed yet again. 

 
There is disappointment, frustration, and even anger that a situation that has had such a profound 
impact on their own families, and the families of more than one thousand other Australians should be 
unrecognised, forgotten, or ignored by most of their compatriots.  They feel that they have not been 
included in Australian history and wonder why this should be so. 
 
For those who have links with that community which was lost from the islands of New Guinea in 1942, 
there is a common desire to have the story made known to the wider public.  In a speech in 1992, at a 
service of remembrance in New Britain to mark the 50th anniversary of the sinking of the Montevideo 
Maru, it was stated, 'The history of those months deserves to be far better known.' 

 
The majority of the 'AA Battery, Rabual' was young boys under the age of 20 years old.  Their lives cut 
short! They never had the privilege of marrying and having a family of their own or to be reunited with 
their loved ones.  
 
There was no confirmation of the names of those who lost their lives. 

 
After the events in Rabaul, it would more than 3 years before the families of those killed were to find 
out their fate.  How tragic this must have been for all concerned.  Not knowing whether their son, 
brother, father, uncle, grandchild was alive or dead! 

wŜŎŜƴǘƭȅ ǘƘŜ άwŀōŀǳƭ ŀƴŘ a±a {ƻŎƛŜǘȅέ ƛƴ !ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀΣ were pro-active in seeking recognition for all those 
who lost their lives and constructed a Memorial in Canberra.  Papua New Guinea's Prime Minister Peter 
hΩbŜŀƭ Ŏƻƴǘributed $100,000 towards a work that will be constructed at the Memorial next year. 

My role, as our family historian is to preserve Toss' existence in our family history. 
 
Arthur "Toss" PARKER's parents were Arthur John PARKER and Rhoda Prudence 'Winifred' GREEN. 

 
To my knowledge, Arthur and Winifred never married although through the Electoral Rolls I have found 
them living together in 1930 and 1933 at 44 Selwyn Street, Paddington.  After this date, they separated. 
Arthur was then living at 30 Bellevue Street, Arncliffe with Alice' Eva' PARKER and Winifred was living at 
32A Burton Street, Surry Hills.  Although Winifred married Vladimir Faddeyeff in 1943, she continued to 
live at the same address until, according to the electoral roll, 1963. Toss had stated this address as his 
residence on his enlistment papers.  Perhaps Winifred could not bear to leave her address in case Toss 
came home looking for her! 
 
My mother, Joan Thomas, remembers the boys visiting their father and Eva at Arncliffe.  She also recalls 
visiting Winifred.  My grandmother, Margaret Thomas, Arthur's sister, often visited Winifred who 
worked in a cake shop or cafeteria in Sydney. 
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Toss also had a brother, Eric Parker, who joined the forces on 5 January 1942 and was discharged 19 
December 1945.  Eric married Kathleen Little on 22 September 1945 at Auburn.  I believe they had two 
daughters, Janette and Aileen.  Eric and Kathleen divorced in October 1958.  
 
Toss' father died on 12th April 1946 aged 50 years, and I wonder if it was the stress and or the news of 
hearing that his son was never to return, that caused his death! 
 
The Rabaul Historical Society held a Double Service on Anzac Day this year, 25th April 2012 to 
commemorate the 70th anniversaries of war coming to Rabaul and the sinking of the Montevideo Maru. 
http://www.montevideomaru.info/Montevideo/html/RABAUL%20HISTORICAL%20SOCIETY%20DOUBLE
%20COMMEMORATION%20SERVICE.html 
 
Lest we forget! 

Submitted by Margaret Hope (5233) 
hopemarg@gmail.com 
 

Sources: 

Selby, David. Hell And High Fever. 1956 Currawong Publishing Co. P/L. Sydney.  

Alpin, Douglas. Rabaul 1942. 1994 Pacific Press. ISBN 1 875150 02 01 

Reeson, Margaret. Whereabouts Unknown. 1993 Albatross Books. Sutherland ISBN 0 7324 1033 7 

Reeson, Margaret. A Very Long War. 2000 Melbourne University Press ISBN 0 522 84909 1 

Remembering The War In New Guinea 

 http://ajrp.awm.gov.au/AJRP/remember.nsf/Web-Frames/MapFrame?OpenDocument 

Lost Lives-The Second World War and the islands of New Guinea 

http://www.jje.info/lostlives/places/aamlcd.html 

The Montevideo Maru. Lost at Sea, Lost from Australian History. 

http://www.montevideomaru.org/history/history-montevideo-maru/the-montevideo-maru-lost-at-sea-
lost-from-australian-history/ 

Statement by the Minister for Veterans' Affairs and Minister for Defence Personnel, the Hon Alan Griffin, 
MP. Statement on the loss of the Montevideo Maru 21 June 2010 

http://www.dva.gov.au/news_archive/Documents/maru.pdf 

Photo of The Montevideo Maru.  (Copyright expired – public domain availability) 
http://cas.awm.gov.au/item/303640  

http://www.montevideomaru.info/Montevideo/html/RABAUL%20HISTORICAL%20SOCIETY%20DOUBLE%20COMMEMORATION%20SERVICE.html
http://www.montevideomaru.info/Montevideo/html/RABAUL%20HISTORICAL%20SOCIETY%20DOUBLE%20COMMEMORATION%20SERVICE.html
file:///C:/Users/mugs1/Documents/PHT%20Editor%20Only/hopemarg@gmail.com
http://ajrp.awm.gov.au/AJRP/remember.nsf/Web-Frames/MapFrame?OpenDocument
http://www.jje.info/lostlives/places/aamlcd.html
http://www.montevideomaru.org/history/history-montevideo-maru/the-montevideo-maru-lost-at-sea-lost-from-australian-history/
http://www.montevideomaru.org/history/history-montevideo-maru/the-montevideo-maru-lost-at-sea-lost-from-australian-history/
http://www.dva.gov.au/news_archive/Documents/maru.pdf
http://cas.awm.gov.au/item/303640
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THE TUCKERMAN AND SIMMONS FAMILIES 

Gwen Knox is the grand-daughter of Frederick Cork and Rhoda Simmons,  
the daughter of George Simmons and Sarah Tuckerman 

William Tuckerman (34), his wife, Sarah (35) and his two children, William (14) and Sarah (9) from 
Kingsbridge on the south coast of Devon, migrated in 1838.  They came on the Andromache whose 
departure from Plymouth on 8 October was advertised as follows in The Times for 24 July and 4 August 
1838:  
 

άThe ship ANDROMACHE, of 477 tons, THOMAS NEW, Commander, will leave Gravesend 
the 29th September and Plymouth the 8th October. All direct to SYDNEY… These ships 
[another is named] are all of the of the first-class, have poops  and very superior 
accommodation, will each carry an experienced surgeon, be fitted and supplied with 
liberal regard to the comfort of passengers, and sail with strict punctuality. Persons from 
all parts of the three kingdoms can join these ships on fixed days at London or Plymouth 
by steam conveyance, at a very small cost, and embarking at once avoid all further 
expenses. All particulars may be known on application to John Marshall, 26 Birchin-Lane, 
Cornhill.έ 

The shipping records (State Records) provide the information on their ages, and that the adults were 
Protestant farm servants who could neither read nor write, so they must have been told about the 
possibilities for migrating.  ά.ȅ ǿƘƻƳ LƳǇƻǊǘŜŘέ ƴŀƳŜǎ aǊ aŀǊǎƘŀƭƭΣ ǘƘŜ ƻǿƴŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǎƘƛǇΣ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ 
ά!Ƴǘ ƻŦ .ƻǳƴǘȅέ ōŜƛƴƎ ϻму ŦƻǊ ŜŀŎƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ƳŜƳōŜǊǎΦ  John Marshall participated in the bounty 
scheme, which was introduced by the British emigration commissioners and the Australian colonial 
governments, and was financed by selling Crown land in the colonies and using the money to pay for 
ƳƛƎǊŀƴǘǎΩ ǇŀǎǎŀƎŜǎ.  The ship arrived at Sydney on 31 January 1839.  

The family apparently settled at Currowan on the Clyde River near Batemans Bay, as shown on the map, 
for that was their address when William later bought land fronting the upper reaches of Burrill Lake. 

 
 

 
Documents at the Land and Property Management Authority provided the following information: 

Folio 82/5 Lot 91, 83 acres, purchased on 1 November 1851 by William Tuckerman, Currawan, for £83.  
Folio 82/6 Lot 92, 42 acres, purchased on 5 January 1852 by William Tuckerman, Clyde River for £42. 
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Their location is shown on this Lands Department map.  IŜ ƴŀƳŜŘ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ ά²ŀǎƘōǳǊǘƻƴέ ŀŦǘŜǊ ǘƘŜ 
town in Devon where he was born to Mary and Richard Tuckerman. 

George Simmons, shown as the purchaser of two adjacent lots, had married Sarah Tuckerman at 
Braidwood on 28 August 1847.  Aged only 14, George Symons (original spelling) had received a 10-year 
sentence for Larceny when he appeared before the Barnstaple Court, Devon, on 16 April 1839.  The 
/ƻǳǊǘ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎ ǎǘŀǘŜ άōŜŦƻǊŜ ŎƻƴǾƛŎǘŜŘ ƻŦ ŦŜƭƻƴȅέΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǿƻǳƭŘ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ƘŀǊǎƘƴŜǎǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 
sentence.  Details of the trial were published in the North Devon Journal on 18 April 1839 (copy kindly 
supplied by Tanya St. /ƭŀƛǊ IƻƴŜȅΣ ŘŜǎŎŜƴŘŀƴǘ ƻŦ DŜƻǊƎŜΩǎ ƻƭŘŜǎǘ ǎƻƴΣ WŀƳŜǎύ ŀƴŘ ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜ Ƙƻǿ ƘŜ ǎǘƻƭŜ 
a pair of shoes, which he pawned for 8 pence-halfpenny.  He was transported on the Mangles, which left 
Portsmouth on 28 November 1839.  ¢ƘŜ ǎƘƛǇΩǎ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎ ό{ǘŀǘŜ wŜŎƻǊŘǎύ ǇǊƻǾide the information that he 
ǿŀǎ ŀƴ ŜǊǊŀƴŘ ōƻȅΣ ǿƘƻ ǿŀǎ рŦŜŜǘ пѹƛƴŎƘŜǎ όмснŎƳύ ǘŀƭƭ ŀƴŘ ŎƻǳƭŘ ǊŜŀŘΤ άǎŀƭƭƻǿ ŎƻƳǇƭŜȄƛƻƴΣ ōǊƻǿƴ 
hair, light hazel eyes, eyebrows partially meeting, scar on right eyebrow, scar back of head, scar under 
right wrist, TTJ and other illegible letters on back of left hand, rings on fore, middle and third finger of 
ǎŀƳŜΦέ Lǘ ƛǎ ŀƭǎƻ ǊŜŎƻǊŘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ƘŜ ǿŀǎ ƳŀǊǊƛŜŘΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǎ ǊŜǇŜŀǘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ǊŜŎƻǊŘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Mangles  
convicts, but no confirmation could be found.  

The ship reached Sydney on 27 April 1840, where the 289 convicts disembarked; 236 were then sent on 
to Norfolk Island on 7 May after processing. (The Convict Ships, C Bateson)  It was probably decided that 
the young ones should remain in Sydney.  George was presumably then sent south to the Batemans Bay 
ŘƛǎǘǊƛŎǘ ǿƘŜǊŜ .ǊƻǳƭŜŜ όǎŜŜ ŘƛǎǘǊƛŎǘ ƳŀǇύΣ млл ƪƳ ǎƻǳǘƘ ƻŦ ¦ƭƭŀŘǳƭƭŀΣ ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ Ƴŀƛƴ ǇƻǊǘΥ άǘƘŜ 
development of settlements in the area was based on convict labour.  Clearing, building and general 
farm work was done largely by convicts.  Buckenboura [where Frederick Cork acquired properties] was 
ƻǊƛƎƛƴŀƭƭȅ ŎƭŜŀǊŜŘ ōȅ ŎƻƴǾƛŎǘ ƭŀōƻǳǊΦέ όBehind Broulee, William A Bailey). Ticket of Leave was granted on 
the recommendation ƻŦ ǘƘŜ .ǊƻǳƭŜŜ .ŜƴŎƘ ƛƴ CŜōǊǳŀǊȅ мупсΥ άŀƭƭƻǿŜŘ ǘƻ ǊŜƳŀƛƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŘƛǎǘǊƛŎǘ ƻŦ 
.ǊƻǳƭŜŜέΦ  Though the jurisdiction of the Broulee Court stretched as far as Ulladulla, George was 
probably working with William Tuckerman or some one nearby, which would account for his receiving 
permission on 16 August 1847 to marry 18-year-old Sarah Tuckerman, the ceremony, as mentioned, 
being performed at Braidwood on 28 August.  
 

 

George received his Certificate of Freedom on 4 June 1850.  Following their marriage, the spelling of the 
name was changed to Simmons, the name under which their 11 children were registered, and listed in 
the Simmons-Cork Family Bible in the Milton Uniting Church.  James, on 27 September 1849, and Jane, 
ƻƴ с CŜōǊǳŀǊȅ мурнΣ ǿŜǊŜ ōƻǊƴ ŀǘ ά/ƭȅŘŜέΣ ǇǊŜǎǳmably at the Tuckerman family home; all the later ones, 
ŦǊƻƳ 9ƳƳŀ ƻƴ мс Wǳƭȅ мурп ǘƻ 9ǊƴŜǎǘ ƻƴ ф {ŜǇǘŜƳōŜǊ мутоΣ ǿŜǊŜ ōƻǊƴ ŀǘ ά²ŀǎƘōǳǊǘƻƴέΤ ǘƘŜ ōƛǊǘƘ 
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certificate for Rhoda (born 4 November 1860) ƴŀƳŜǎ DŜƻǊƎŜ ŀǎ ŀ CŀǊƳŜǊ ά²ŀǎƘōǳǊǘƻƴέΦ  (Further 
details are given in Masters & Convicts Murramarang & Ulladulla, Cathy Dunn)  Thus it seems likely that 
DŜƻǊƎŜ ŀƴŘ {ŀǊŀƘ ƳƻǾŜŘ ǘƻ ¦ƭƭŀŘǳƭƭŀ ǿƛǘƘ ²ƛƭƭƛŀƳ ¢ǳŎƪŜǊƳŀƴΩǎ ŦŀƳƛƭȅΦ  

By 1858, George had accumulated sufficient capital to purchase the two lots adjacent to William 
¢ǳŎƪŜǊƳŀƴΩǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŀǊŜ ǎƘƻǿƴ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ [ŀƴŘǎ 5ŜǇŀǊǘƳŜƴǘ ƳŀǇΦ 5ƻŎǳƳŜƴǘǎ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ [ŀƴŘ ŀƴŘ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ 
Management Authority provided the following information: 

Vol 58/630 Lot 90, 58 acres purchased on 24 April 1858, by George Tuckerman, Ulladulla, for £58. 
Vol 46/78 Lot 39, 95 acres excluding 2 acre reserve and road, purchased on 9 July1858 by George 
Tuckerman, Ulladulla, for £95 by public auction, the upset price.  
bƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǎǳōǎŜǉǳŜƴǘ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǎ ŀ ƴŀƳŜ ŦƻǊ Ƙƛǎ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅΣ ƛƴǎǘŜŀŘ ǊŜŦŜǊǊƛƴƎ ǘƻ ά²ŀǎƘōǳǊǘƻƴέΦ 
George obviously prospered as he purchased seven of the 60 auctioned lots in the newly-established 
township of Milton in 1860, all in the southern section.  The purchases, average price £16, were 
recorded in the Illawarra Mercury, for Tuesday 14 February and reprinted in the Sydney Morning Herald 
on the Thursday.  

!ƎŜŘ ƻƴƭȅ пфΣ DŜƻǊƎŜ ŘƛŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ǇŜǊƛǘƻƴƛǘƛǎ ŀǘ ά.ǳǊǊƛƭƭ [ŀƪŜέ ƻƴ нл WǳƴŜ мутпΣ άǘƘŜ Řŀȅ ƘŜ ǿŀǎ ŜƭŜŎǘŜŘ ǘƻ 
ǘƘŜ ŦƛǊǎǘ ¦ƭƭŀŘǳƭƭŀ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭέ όMeet the Pioneers, Joanne Ewin; both families feature in the book), and was 
buried in the Milton Methodist Cemetery, Croobyar Road.  His will, dated 26 January 1870 (Series2-875, 
{ǘŀǘŜ wŜŎƻǊŘǎύ ƭŜŦǘ Ƙƛǎ ŜǎǘŀǘŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ōŜƴŜŦƛǘ ƻŦ {ŀǊŀƘ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ŎƘƛƭŘǊŜƴ ǿƛǘƘ άtǊƻōŀǘŜ ǎǿƻǊƴ ŀǘ ϻррлέΦ 
SaraƘ ŀƎŜŘ рмΣ ŘƛŜŘ ŀǘ ά²ŀǎƘōǳǊǘƻƴέ ƻƴ мт !ǳƎǳǎǘ муул ŀƴŘ ǿŀǎ ŀƭǎƻ ōǳǊƛŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ aƛƭǘƻƴ aŜǘƘƻŘƛǎǘ 
Cemetery.  Their headstones have been located but the inscriptions are barely legible.  Their deaths are 
recorded in the Simmons-Cork Family Bible as are those of William Tuckerman, who died on 12 June 
1866, aged 73, and Sarah on 15 September 1879, aged 90.  They also were buried in the Milton 
Methodist Cemetery.  ²ƛƭƭƛŀƳΩǎ ǿƛƭƭ ό{ŜǊƛŜǎ м-тлпрΣ {ǘŀǘŜ wŜŎƻǊŘǎύ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎ άDƻƻŘǎ ǎǿƻǊƴ ŀǘ ϻнлл 
tǊƻōŀǘŜέΦ  The Simmons children inherited the farm.  Sarah had purchased the Family Bible in March 
1879, and fortunately it was passed on to Rhoda, as later entries refer only to her marriage on 25 March 
муун ǘƻ CǊŜŘŜǊƛŎƪ /ƻǊƪ ŀǘ ά²ŀǎƘōǳǊǘƻƴέ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƴƛƴŜ ŎƘƛƭŘǊŜƴΦ  The childrŜƴΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ DǿŜƴΩǎ ŦŀǘƘŜǊ 
{ǘŀƴ ό!ƭōŜǊǘ {ǘŀƴƭŜȅύΣ ƎǊŜǿ ǳǇ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻǊƪ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ŦŀǊƳΣ άIƛƭƭ ¢ƻǇέ ƻƴ /ƻǊƪǎ [ŀƴŜΦ  (There are details on 
ǘƘŜ ¢ǳŎƪŜǊƳŀƴΣ {ƛƳƳƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ /ƻǊƪ ŦŀƳƛƭƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ {ƻŎƛŜǘȅΩǎ Pioneer Register.) 

! ǊŜŎŜƴǘ ǇƘƻǘƻƎǊŀǇƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ά²ŀǎƘōǳǊǘƻƴέ Ŧŀrm land with the upper reaches 
of Burrill Lake visible in the mid-distance. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[ƻŎŀǘŜŘ ǘƘŜǊŜ ŀǘ ру ²ŀǎƘōǳǊǘƻƴ wƻŀŘ ƛǎ /ǳǇǇƛǘǘΩǎ ²ƛƴŜǊȅ ŀƴŘ wŜǎǘŀǳǊŀƴǘΦ άThe cellar door is situated 
ŀŘƧŀŎŜƴǘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǎǘŀǳǊŀƴǘ ƛƴ ŀƴ ƻƭŘ ǎǘƻƴŜ ŎǊŜŀƳŜǊȅ ōǳƛƭǘ ƛƴ мурмΦέ ό/ŀǘƘȅ 5ǳƴƴΩǎ ǳƭƭŀŘǳƭƭŀΦƛƴŦƻ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜύΦ 
Nearby is Tuckerman Road, a permanent reminder of this pioneer family. 

Submitted by Ken and Gwen Knox (5227) 

 



Pigeon House Tidings June 2012 No35 – Milton Ulladulla Family History Society Inc 
 

Page 20 of 32 

 

MY GRANDMOTHER AMELIA EVELINE QUIGG (NEE PENFOLD) 
 
It is without question that I loved my maternal grandmother Amelia (Millie) Eveline Quigg (nee Penfold), 
ōǳǘ ƛǘ ǿŀǎƴΩǘ ǳƴǘƛƭ ǊŜŎŜƴǘƭȅ ǿƘŜƴ L ǿŀǎ ŘƻƛƴƎ ǎƻƳŜ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ ǘƘŀǘ L ǊŜŀƭƛȊŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǎƘŜ ǿŀǎ ǉǳƛǘŜ ŀ 
remarkable and caring person despite tragedy and hard times.   
 
Born in 1908 the fourth child of Richard Daniel Penfold and Ethel Vera Penfold (nee Garbutt), Amelia 
lived at Wingello, on the Southern Highlands NSW, as a child and attended Wingello Public School.  
Amelia suffered a great deal of sadness in her full life.  Her father Richard Daniel Penfold, born about 
1880 in Berrima NSW, was accidentally killed when he was felling timber at Wingello in 1914.  Amelia 
ǿŀǎ ƻƴƭȅ с ȅŜŀǊǎ ƻŦ ŀƎŜ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǘƛƳŜΦ  Lǘ ƛǎ ōŜƭƛŜǾŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ !ƳŜƭƛŀΩǎ ƳƻǘƘŜǊ 9ǘƘŜƭ ǘƻƻƪ ƛƴ ǇŜƻǇƭŜΩǎ ǿŀǎƘƛƴƎ 
and worked as a cleaner to survive the difficulties of raising a family and later remarried Thomas 
Mahoney in 1829.  When Amelia left school she worked in guest houses in Bundanoon.  
 
 In 1920 she married my grandfather Leslie Victor Quigg the son of William and Charlotte Mary Quigg.  
Leslie was a descendant of the Quigg Irish farming family who arrived in Australia aboard the ship 
Hyderabad in 1848 and were granted land in Canterbury 
NSW.  Amelia together with her husband Leslie raised 5 
children at Exeter NSW.  Apart from the early death of 
her father Richard, she lived through the great 
ŘŜǇǊŜǎǎƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ мфолΩǎΣ ǎǳŦŦŜǊŜŘ ǘƘŜ ƭƻǎǎ ƻŦ о ƻŦ ƘŜǊ 
own adult children (one of them being my mother), the 
accidental death of one daughter-in-law as well as 
grandchildren.  Caring for family became an important 
part of her life that she embraced without second 
thought.  Amelia happily boarded her niece and a 
nephew so that they were closer to transportation to 
work, 2 of my cousins lived with her for a time and she 
helped raise the children of her son after the tragic 
death of her daughter-in-law.   

 
My grandmother overcame all this adversity and 
continued to be of a cheerful and loving nature.  Her 
door was always open to family and friends and a cup of 
tea was never long away when you stepped through the 
doorway.  She loved to have visitors to help pass the 
time when she grew older and took great interest in the 
happenings in the village of Exeter and news from family 
and friends.  I spent a great deal of my time with my 

grandmother as she lived close to my childhood home.  Amelia and Leslie Quigg 

 
There are many things that she told me when I was younger about my Quigg and Penfold family 
relatives that I wish I could remember or had the foresight to write down stories.  I continue to research 
the family with the help of Milton Ulladulla Family History Society Family Inc and I hope someone might 
by chance read this article and have further information, photographs or family documents they might 
like to share with me about these branches in my family tree. 

 
Submitted by Cheryl Stokes (10336) 
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TRACING MY SCOTTISH ANCESTORS 
 
²ŀǘŎƘƛƴƎ bŜƛƭ hƭƛǾŜǊΩǎ ŜȄŎŜƭƭŜƴǘ ǎŜǊƛŜǎ ƻƴ {ŎƻǘƭŀƴŘ ƻƴ ǘŜƭŜǾƛǎƛƻƴ Ƙŀǎ ƛƴǎǇƛǊŜŘ ƳŜ ǘƻ Ǉƭŀƴ ŀ Ǿƛǎƛǘ ǘƘƛǎ ȅŜŀǊ 
to the birthplace of one quarter of my ancestors.  They were hard working and intelligent people who 
ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘŜŘ ǘƻ !ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀΩǎ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎ ŀǎ ŀ ƴŜǿ Ŏƻƭony. 

 
I have traced the family of my grandmother, Laura Isabella Tinson nee Blackie, back to a John Blackie 
who was born about 1800 in Glasgow and died about 1836 in Greenock.  About 1825 in Greenock, he 
married Sarah Napier Thomson, born in Glasgow to Hugh Thomson and Agnes Davison.  Three years 
after she was widowed in 1836, she married James Nisbet of Chapleton, living her later years at 4 Steel 
Street, Glasgow and died in that city. 
 
WƻƘƴ ŀƴŘ {ŀǊŀƘΩǎ ŎƘƛƭŘǊŜƴ ǿŜǊŜ tŀǘǊƛŎƪ όtŜǘŜǊύ .ƭŀŎƪƛŜΣ ō мунт DƭŀǎƎƻǿ, d 1907 Marrickville, NSW 
Australia; Hugh Thomson Blackie, b about 1829 in Scotland, d 1866 in Australia; Agnes Blackie, b 1832 
and Mary Blackie b 1834. 
 
Young Patrick (Peter) Blackie lived with his mother and family, possibly at 4 Steel St, Glasgow but by the 
1851 Scotland Census he, aged 24 and an engineer on the railway, and brother Hugh, 18 were living with 
their uncle and aunt, William, 49 and a steam engineer on the railway, and Ann Blackie at 22 Baker St, 
Fergusons House, Greenock East, Renfrewshire.  By the 1861 Scotland Census, William, 59 was listed as 
ŀƴ ŜƴƎƛƴŜ άƭƛǘǘŜǊέ όŦƛǘǘŜǊΚύΣ ƭƛǾƛƴƎ ŀǘ с LƴƎƭŜǎǘƻƴ wŘΣ wŜƴŦǊŜǿǎƘƛǊŜ ŀƴŘ мр ȅΦƻΦ WƻƘƴ bŜǎōƛǘǘ όǎǘŜǇ ƴŜǇƘŜǿύ 
was also living there, but not tŀǘǊƛŎƪ ǿƘƻ ƘŀŘ ƳƛƎǊŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ !ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀ ƛƴ мурп ƻƴ ά¢ƘŜ IŜǊŀƭd of the 
aƻǊƴƛƴƎέΦ  IǳƎƘ ŀƭǎƻ ƳƛƎǊŀǘŜŘ ŀǘ tŀǘǊƛŎƪΩǎ ƛƴǎǘƛƎŀǘƛƻƴ ōǳǘ ƴŜǾŜǊ ƳŀǊǊƛŜŘΦ 

 
tŀǘǊƛŎƪ ƳŀǊǊƛŜŘ WŜǎǎƛŜ wƻōō ŀǘ ƘŜǊ ŦŀǘƘŜǊΩǎ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ ŀǘ wƛǾŜǊǎŘŀƭŜΣ YƛŀƳŀΣ b{² ŀƴŘ ƭŀǘŜǊ ƭƛǾŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ Ƙƛǎ 
family at Ann St, Balmain, then Darlington, then Dulwich Hill.  AccoǊŘƛƴƎ ǘƻ Ƙƛǎ ƻōƛǘǳŀǊȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ά{ȅŘƴŜȅ 
aƻǊƴƛƴƎ IŜǊŀƭŘέΣ άIŜ ŘƛŜŘ ƛƴ мфлт ŀǎ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǎǘ ŜƴƎƛƴŜŜǊǎ ŘŀǘƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ŜŀǊƭȅ Ŏƻƭƻƴƛŀƭ ŘŀȅǎΦ  He 
came of a family of Scotch engineers who had a foundry in Glasgow where that City was but beginning 
to rise in engiƴŜŜǊƛƴƎ ŜƳƛƴŜƴŎŜΣ ŀƴŘ ŀ ƳŜƳōŜǊ ƻŦ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƻƴŎŜ Ǌŀƴ ǘƘŜ ƻƭŘ ά/ƻƳŜǘέ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƭȅŘŜΣ ŦƻǊ 
several years was engaged as Manager of the old A.S.N. Constructions Works and thereafter associated 
with Captain Rowntree at Balmain.  Later Patrick was manager for Messrs P.N. Russell & Co., until their 
ǿƻǊƪǎ ŎƭƻǎŜŘΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜƴ ǎǳǇŜǊƛƴǘŜƴŘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ƭŀȅƛƴƎ Řƻǿƴ ƻŦ άǘƘŜ {ƭƛǇέ ŀǘ aƻǊǘǎ 5ƻŎƪΦ  For some years 
ŀŦǘŜǊǿŀǊŘǎ ƘŜ ǿŀǎ ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ IŀǊōƻǳǊǎ ŀƴŘ wƛǾŜǊǎ 5ŜǇŀǊǘƳŜƴǘΦέ 

Patrick and Jessie (nee Robb) Blackie 
 

WŜǎǎƛŜΩǎ ŦŀǘƘŜǊΣ WŀƳŜǎ wƻōōΣ ǿŀǎ 
born 21 Sep 1805 in Barnhill, 
Perth, Scotland and died 24 
Sep1881 in Kiama NSW.  James 
wƻōōΩǎ ǇŀǊŜƴǘǎ ǿŜǊŜ WŀƳŜǎ wƻōōΣ 
b 17 Nov 1783 Barnhill, 
Perthshire and Christian Ewan b 
1784 in Barnhill, Perthshire.  His 
grandparents were Thomas Robb 
b 1760 in St Madoes, Perth and 
Margaret May Gikie b in Perth. 

 
James Robb married Agnes 
Francis McIntosh, born 1821 in 
Glasgow to William McIntosh and 

WŀƴŜǘ ¢ƘƻƳǎƻƴΣ ƻƴ мп aŀǊ муоф ƛƴ {ǘ !ƴŘǊŜǿΩǎ {Ŏƻǘǎ /ƘǳǊŎƘ {ȅŘƴŜȅΦ  Agnes died 29 May 1891 in Kiama 
NSW.  ¢ƘŜ aŎLƴǘƻǎƘ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ŀǊǊƛǾŜŘ ƛƴ {ȅŘƴŜȅ ƛƴ муоп ƻƴ ǘƘŜ άhǘƘŜƭƭƻέΣ ²ƛƭƭƛŀƳ aŎLƴǘƻǎƘ ŀƭǎƻ ōŜƛƴƎ 
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listed as an engineer.  ²ƛƭƭƛŀƳǎΩǎ ǇŀǊŜƴǘǎ ǿŜǊŜ WƻƘƴ aŎLƴǘƻǎƘ ō ŀōǘ мтрп ŀƴŘ WŜŀƴ aƛƭƭŜǊ ς they married 
26 Feb 1779 in Lanark, Cambusland.  Janet Thomson, b Sept 1799 in Glasgow, d 1862, was born to Hugh 
Thomson, b Oct 1766 Scotland, d 18 May 1836 in London, and Agnes Davidson, b Nov 1769 in 
YƛǊƪƻǎǿŀƭŘΣ Ř муну ƛƴ DƭŀǎƎƻǿΦ  IǳƎƘ ¢ƘƻƳǎƻƴΩǎ ǇŀǊŜƴǘǎ ǿŜǊŜ IǳƎƘ ¢ƘƻƳǎƻƴ ō мтол IƻƭƭŀƴŘ .ǳǎƘ ŀƴŘ 

Janet McLewan ō мторΦ !ƎƴŜǎ 5ŀǾƛŘǎƻƴΩǎ 
parents were John Davidson and (unknown) 
Stewart McNilley.  
 
In 1827, James left Scotland for NSW, having 
entered into an engagement under 
indenture with William Walker, a merchant 
of Sydney, with whom he had arrived in 
Sydney ŀōƻŀǊŘ ǘƘŜ άbǳƳŀέ ƻƴ р Wǳƭȅ мунуΦ 
At the expiration of three years, the term for 
which he was engaged, he commenced 
business on his own account as a builder 
and contractor in Bathurst Street, and was 
the architect for a number of buildings in 
Sydney.  

Agnes Frances Robb (nee McIntosh) and James Robb 

In 1830 he obtained the property of Riversdale of some 1280 acres in the County of Camden at Kiama. 
¢ƘŜ ŜǎǘŀǘŜ ŎƻƴǘŀƛƴŜŘ ǉǳƛǘŜ ŀ ƭƻǘ ƻŦ ŦƛƴŜ ŎŜŘŀǊ ŀƴŘ ŦƻǊ ŀōƻǳǘ ǘŜƴ ȅŜŀǊǎ wƻōōΩǎ Ƴŀƛƴ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǿŀǎ ǘƻ ƘŀǾŜ 
this cedar cut out and sold.  The cedar was cut on sawpits, hauled by bullocks to the boat harbour in 
Kiama and then dispatched by boat to Robb in Sydney.  After 1840, he began clearing the place in 
earnest and building a home for himself.  
 
On 14 Mar 1939, Robb married Agnes Frances McIntosh of Sydney where the couple had their first two 
children, James (1839) and Jessie (1842). 
 
Securing the deed of grant on his Riversdale property in 1840, he began to experiment with growing 
sugar cane but it was found that in winter the frost of the Minnamurra flats was too strong.  He then 
decided to establish an orchard and vineyard for which the district was then believed to be well adapted 
and with this he also introduced a number of Germans acquainted with that industry.  However, this 
experiment was also unsuccessful and dairying soon became more profitable and this industry has 
prevailed since. 
 
In 1841, Robb formed part of a committee to take charge of clearing for planned streets and the 
erection of a jetty in Kiama.  The new Kiama Presbyterian Church of early English architecture built of 
ōŀǎŀƭǘ ǿƛǘƘ ŦŀŎƛƴƎǎ ƛƴ ǎǘƻƴŜΣ ǿŀǎ ŘŜǎƛƎƴŜŘ ōȅ ¢ƘƻǎΦ wƻǿŜ ƻŦ {ȅŘƴŜȅΣ ǘƘŜ ŦǊŜŜǎǘƻƴŜ ǎŜŎǳǊŜŘ ƻƴ wƻōōΩǎ 
estate at Riversdale being his gift to the church which was opened on 4 Mar 1863 ς it had cost 
seventeen hundred pounds and was erected by the Free Church Presbyterians of the district. 
 
To supplement the local CofE church education, a subscription list to establish a national system of 
education in Kiama was opened with Robb being one of the patrons, and was opened in 1861. 
 
Robb continued to conduct business in Sydney until his retirement in 1843, leaving then for Kiama.  In 
the same year he leased 1000 acres of Riversdale Estate to George Grey who had the view of settling up 
a number of immigrants, relations and acquaintances of his own from County Fermanagh, Ireland.  This 
was very successful and dairying on the leased portion was conducted by 22 families. 
 
In March 1861, Robb landed in Kiama from Scotland a noted Ayrshire bull and two fine Ayrshire cows. 
The name of the bull was Duke of Argyll and was highly prized by dairy farmers.  It was on a portion of 
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Riversdale, owned by son-in-law John Honey and leased by George Wood who made the two acres 
available, that the first co-operative butter factory in Australia was built and officially opened by Mrs W 
Grey in 1884.  Robb served as a bench magistrate for Kiama Court from 1864 to 1874. 
 
Whilst living in Kiama, James and Jessie Robb had twelve more children and up to the time of his death 
they had produced some thirty-three grandchildren. After his death at 76 from a rupture of a blood 
vessel of the brain, his funeral procession was followed from his home to the Presbyterian section of 
Kiama public cemetery by a large procession of carriages and equestrians. 
 
As you can possibly tell, I am very proud of my Scots ancestry. 

 
Submitted by Janette Wendy Sullivan nee Tinson (9321) 
 
 

 
FOUND at the Salvation Army Ulladulla. 
Our Vice President, Lorelle Lee, is a volunteer at the Salvation Army op shop and recently 
discovered some very beautiful, old photo albums had been handed in, perhaps not 
intentionally. 
The photograph albums relate to the following families. 
 
LINTOTT TAYLOR (Bishop of Bathurst at Orange 1898.) 
 
GRAY (George 1905-1978) m. Annie August 1935. 
AUGUST (Obadiah & Jeremiah, Charles, Selina, Georgina & Rosena) 
WILLIAMS (Margaret Jayne b.1948, m. Gerald Gray 1975) 
FLOYD (Walter James 1854-1939 at Victoria) ς photograph of Grandma and brothers.  
 

 

 
 
Please contact Lorelle Lee at mufhsinc@ gmail.com for enquiries about any of the above. 

 
 
 

 
The NSW and ACT Association of History Societies Inc Family History State Conference 

and Expo 2012 is being held from 14-16 September 2012 at Tradies Gymea 
57 Manchester Rd (Cnr Kingsway) 

Hosted By 
Botany Bay Family History Society 

www.conference2012.org.au 
 

 

http://www.conference2012.org.au/
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Milton Ulladulla Family History 
Society 

 

 

Pioneer Register - Pre 1920 
 
 

$30 plus $13 postage 
 

Order Form on back page of this 
publication. 
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ABOUT OUR MEMBERS 
-ÅÍÂÅÒȭÓ 0ÒÏÆÉÌÅ ɀ Marg Hope 

 
What is your name? 
Margaret Hope. 
 
When and why did you first start researching your family 
history? 
My research began after my maternal grandmother, Margaret 
Jane (Parker) Thomas passed away in June 1981.  As a young girl 
I recalled my grandmother telling me that we had a relative who 
was a bushranger.  His name was John Vane.  I was told that it 
was a family secret so I never asked questions and Nana never 
elaborated. 
 
After her death I questioned my Uncles and Aunts asking if they 
knew how we were related to John Vane.  My research began.  It 
took over 23 years to confirm and verify the relationship.  John 
Vane was a member of Ben Hall's gang.  He was the only 
member of the gang to live beyond 30 years. 
 
John Vane married Jane Parker who was my grandmother's 
paternal aunt. 
 
Who was your first ancestor to arrive in Australia and when did 
he settle here?   
William Parker, who was transported for stealing one waistcoat and one pair of clogs.  He was tried and 
convicted at Lancaster Quarter Session on 9th April 1835 and sentenced to 14 years transportation.  He 
arrived in Van Diemen's Land (Tasmania) on board 'Aurora' on 8th October 1835. He was aged 14 years 
at the time of his offence.  My research continues on William. 
 
During January 1835 William's father, John, and his two brothers John Jnr., and Ambrose stole 8 pieces 
of cotton from a Lancaster woolen mill.  They too were transported.  John Snr. was sentenced to 7 years 
transportation and arrived in New South Wales on 25 October 1835 on board 'Mary Ann'.  
His two sons were sentenced to 14 years transportation and they both arrived in New South Wales on 
17 January 1836 on board 'John Barry'.  
 
In 1838 their younger sibling Thomas was convicted of stealing a silk handkerchief.  He was aged 14 
years and was transported for 7 years, arriving at Van Diemen's Land in April 1839 on board 
'Egyptian'. 
 
Thomas eventually found his way to New South Wales and found his brother Ambrose where they both 
worked at a property called "Jerula" near Cowra, where they are both buried.  Their brother John Jnr., 
(my great great grandfather) died at Morongala Creek, via Cowra in 1850. 
 
I often wonder if my grandmother knew of their convict heritage! 

 
What are some of the surnames you are researching? 
On my father's side the main families are APPS, MATTHEWS/ MATUEST, CURRY, WEBBER, BLYTH, 
WENSLEY, GUY, DAVIS, HUMPHREYS.  The Apps family arrived on board "Royal George" in 1839.  They 
were 'bounty immigrants'.  They lived in the Camden area and eventually migrated to Sydney. 
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My maternal names are PARKER, THOMAS, McKINNON, WILLIAMS, WALSH, LEE, LINES, CONNOLLY, and 
ALLEN. 

 
Which of your ancestors do you find most interesting and why? 
My paternal great, great, grandfather, William Matthews/Matuest/Matuist.  He has been one of my 
brick walls for several decades.  His marriage certificate, in 1876, states that he was born in Germany.  
He was a watch and clock maker and jeweler but at the time of his marriage he was the publican of the 
Caxton Hotel, Brisbane.  He was born in Germany in 1838.  Family legend has it that he was married in 
England and had three children, his wife died and he migrated to Australia with his children.  I have 
confirmed two of his children to his first marriage, Dora Martha Monica and William. To date I have not 
found his marriage in England.  His son William's death certificate states that his mother's name was 
Emma Jay but unfortunately, I have not had any success confirming this marriage. 

 
What do you enjoy most about family history?  
Discovering my heritage.  It is very important to me to preserve our family history for future 
generations.  I get great satisfaction discovering new information and also assisting others with their 
research. 

 
Have you done any special travelling relating to your family history research? If so, when, where to 
and what did you find?   
I travelled to New Zealand in 2009 to meet distant relatives in Invercargill, Southland.  I met in excess of 
20 relatives and it was like we had met before.  The similarities were familiar!  An experience I will never 
forget.  
 
In the 1980's I went to St. Arnaud, Victoria, the birthplace of my paternal grandfather.  I met an elderly 
gentleman named Mr. Kearney, and although he was not related he gave me a wonderful insight of the 
era my grandfather grew up in.  St. Arnaud has a special place in my heart.  I felt at home there. 
 
I joined the Milton Ulladulla Family History Society in 2004 and have attended family history fairs, 
conferences and field trips where I have met many helpful, like minded people and have acquired so 
much knowledge which has benefited my research and enabled me to reduce many brick walls to dust! 
You just never know where your next clue will come from! 

 
Is there anywhere else you would like to go, and why? 
Yes, I want to go to the U.K. and walk in the footsteps of my ancestors in Cornwall, Oxfordshire, Kent, 
Lancaster, Fife, Scotland, and Down, Ireland. 

 

Margaret Hope (5233) 
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Websites of Interest 

 
New Zealand Sites of Interest 

Two interesting websites for people who may be researching NZ ancestors are the Register of 
New Zealand Presbyterian Baptisms 1848-1920 

http://www.archives.presbyterian.org.nz/baptismdatabase.htm/ 
 

and the 
Register of Otago & Southland Marriages 1848 to 1920 

http://www.archives.presbyterian.org.nz/synodregionmarriages.htm/ 

 

Irish Census 

This is also a great site and you can see the actual enumerators page 
http://www.census.nationalarchives.ie/search/ 

 

 
ACT Electoral Rolls 

Are available online from 1916-1967 
http://canberraheritageportal.org/default.php 

 
Irish Family History Foundation (IFHF) 

The Irish Family History Foundation's Online Research Service (ORS) have over 19 million 
records online and have recently announced additional records from the Antrim Family History 

Centre in Co. Antrim. 
http://www.rootsireland.ie/ 

 
Scotlands People  

http://www.scotlandspeople.gov.uk/ 
 

The official Scottish genealogy resource, with almost 80 million records to look through. 
Scottish census records, Scottish wills, birth and death certificates as well as the recently added 
Valuation Rolls for 1915.  These give a fascinating snapshot of Scotland during the First World 
War and record the names of owners, tenants and occupiers of each property, unlike the full 

lists of family members to be found in a census listing.  
 

 
  

http://www.archives.presbyterian.org.nz/baptismdatabase.htm/
http://www.archives.presbyterian.org.nz/synodregionmarriages.htm/
http://www.census.nationalarchives.ie/search/
http://www.census.nationalarchives.ie/search/
http://canberraheritageportal.org/default.php
http://www.rootsireland.ie/
http://www.scotlandspeople.gov.uk/
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Our Memberôs Brick Walls 
 

DUMAN/LAWSON/TAYLOR  
 
George DUMAN born approx 1815 son of Jacob and Mary DUMAN was a 
Blacksmith living in the Spitalfields and Whitechapel areas of East End of 
London.  In 1840 he married Jane LAWSON born 1823 and daughter of Joseph LAWSON a 
Lighterman/Waterman. 
 
They had no known children and immigrated to Melbourne on the Startled Fawn November 1856. 
During February 1858 George died in Northcote, Melbourne and in November of that year his widow 
Jane married widower William Taylor a Car Proprietor born approx 1830 Clerkenwell London, son of 
James Thomas Taylor a Wheelwright. They married at St.Marks Church, Collingwood. 
 
I would be most interested to make contact with anyone interested in this family. 
 

Submitted by Gloria Wilks (5200) 
Douglorw@netspace.net.au 
 

9ƭŀƛƴŜΩǎ Brick Wall 
 
William Webster was my 2nd great grand-father, born c1828, Eckington, Derbyshire.  He died 22 
February 1895, in Eckington, Derbyshire.  He was the father of Joseph Webster, my great-grandfather. 
 
William married Jane Littlewood on 21 June 1852, at the Parish Church Ridgway, Chesterfield, in the 
County of Derby.  
 
When I received their Marriage Certificate to continue my research into previous generations, I 
discovered that it had recorded that WillƛŀƳΩǎ ŦŀǘƘŜǊ ǿŀǎ ƴƻǘ ŀ ²9.{¢9w ōǳǘ William ROTHERHAM, 
butcher. 
 
¢ƻ ŘŀǘŜ L ƘŀǾŜƴΩǘ ōŜŜƴ ŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ŦƛƴŘ ŀƴȅ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎ ƻŦ ²ƛƭƭƛŀƳ ²9.{¢9wΩǎ ōƛǊǘƘ ǘƻ ƎƛǾŜ ƳŜ ŀƴȅ ŎƭǳŜǎ ǘƻ Ƙƛǎ 
ƳƻǘƘŜǊΩǎ ƛŘŜƴǘƛǘȅΦ  !ǘ ŦƛǊǎǘ L ŀǎǎǳƳŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ²9.{¢9w ƴŀƳŜ ǘƘŀǘ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ƘŀƴŘŜŘ Řƻǿƴ Ŧƻr four 
ƎŜƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŎŀƳŜ ŦǊƻƳ ²ƛƭƭƛŀƳΩǎ ƳƻǘƘŜǊΦ  ²ƘŜƴ ǘƘŀǘ ŘƛŘƴΩǘ ǎŜŜƳ ǘƻ ǿƻǊƪΣ ǘƘŜƴ L ǎǘŀǊǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘƛƴƪ 
ƭŀǘŜǊŀƭƭȅ ŀƴŘ ǘƘƻǳƎƘǘ ǘƘŀǘ ƳŀȅōŜ ǘƘŜ ƴŀƳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŦŀǘƘŜǊ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ƳŀǊǊƛŀƎŜ ŎŜǊǘƛŦƛŎŀǘŜ ǿŀǎƴΩǘ ŀ ōƛƻƭƻƎƛŎŀƭ 
one but perhaps a step-father or foster father and was just recorded as FATHER on the certificate.  That 
maybe the biological father was a WEBSTER after all, just not recorded for some reason.  
 
This may be a long-shot ς it is more likely that William Webster was in fact illegitimate and that our 
family name has come from the maternal line.   
 
Can any members give me any help or tips on how I could break through my brick wall so I can find my 
2nd great grand-mother and uncover the secrets of all my ancestors before this generation.   
 

Submitted by Elaine Howard (nee Webster) (11357)  
 

 



Pigeon House Tidings June 2012 No35 – Milton Ulladulla Family History Society Inc 
 

Page 29 of 32 

 

 
TAYLOR  
 
I am looking for descendants of Albert and Mary Ann Taylor, who were married in Kiama in 1873. 

 

 
ALBERT AND MARY ANN TAYLOR 

 
Their children were: - Caroline, William Kidman, Mary Jane, Florence Mabel, Ada, George Henry, Maud, 
Charles Kidman, Myrtle, Lily Nina and Minnie." 
 
If you can help at all, I would be most interested to hear from you. 
 

Submitted by Marilyn Boyd (10337) 
 

 



Pigeon House Tidings June 2012 No35 – Milton Ulladulla Family History Society Inc 
 

Page 30 of 32 

 

 
MEMBERS INTERESTS 

 
Surname Given Names Town County/State Country Dates 

 (10336) Cheryl Stokes.                                  Email:gumboots@aapt.net.au  
GEDDES George Maitland NSW Australia муллΩǎ 

GEDDES John Maitland NSW Australia муллΩǎ 

GEDDES John Walter Quirindi NSW   

GEDDES Walter John Wingen, 
Southern 
Highlands 

NSW Australia мфллΩǎ 

MATTHEWS Henry Gunnedah NSW Australia муллΩǎ 

MATTHEWS Thomas Henry Piallaway NSW Australia 1880-1940 

MATTHEWS Thelma Grace Piallaway NSW Australia мфллΩǎ 

CURRY/CUREY Charlotte Gunnedah NSW Australia Died 1881 

QUIGG James  
Canterbury 

Antrim 
NSW 

Ireland 
Australia 

Born 1794 
Died 1870 

QUIGG Thomas Pelam 
Charles Henry 
Hood 

 Antrim 
NSW 

Ireland 
Australia 

Born 1826 
Died 1908 

QUIGG William Sutton Forest 
and Exeter 

NSW Australia 1861-1943 

QUIGG Leslie Victor Sutton Forest 
and Exeter 

NSW Australia мфллΩǎ 

PENFOLD William Fernhurst 
Berrima 

Sussex 
NSW 

England 
Australia 

Born 1843 
Died 1928 

PENFOLD Richard Daniel Berrima NSW Australia Born 1880 
Died 1914 

WILSON Angelina E Mulgoa NSW Australia Born 1846 
Died 1906 

 
(10335) Margaret Magnusson                                                                                      Email:megmago@yahoo.com.au 

ALDERTON Henry Baker Sydney NSW Australia 1830 + 

BOWMAN Robert Kilmarnock  Scotland 1800 + 

BOWMAN Andrew Kilmarnock  Scotland 1820/1849 

COULTHARD Mary Weardale Durham England 1853 - 

HARLEY Samuel Wollongong NSW Australia 1850 + 

HICKOX Charles Ulladulla NSW Australia 1834 + 

HEYCOX William Nelligen NSW Australia 1882/1959 

LILLEY Richard Stanwick Nth Hampton England 1777 + 

LILLEY Joseph Maryborough QLD Australia 1883 + 

LOHSE Hans Spord  Germany 1864 - 

LOHSE Katerina Maryborough QLD Australia 1854 + 

MAGNUSSON Hilmer Sydney NSW Australia 1860 + 

McGREGOR Peter Stanley Perthshire Scotland 1849 - 

McGREGOR Peter Braidwood NSW Australia 1849/1885 

RIDER Thomas Hellingham Norfolk England 1852 - 

RYDER Thomas Sydney NSW Australia 1852 + 

RUSE Simon Boley London   1814 + 

RUSE Simon Boley Goulburn NSW Australia 1850 + 

WAILES Isaac Weardale Durham England 1871 - 

WALES Isaac Wollongong NSW Australia 1871 + 

WALES Robert 
Coulthard 

Wollongong NSW Australia 1871 + 

WALES George Wollongong NSW Australia 1871 + 

 

mailto:megmago@yahoo.com.au
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Contributors 
 

The following members contributed material to this edition of Pigeon House Tidings. Should you wish 
to correspond with them, contact details appear against their names. 
 
(5218) Christine Moss .................................................................................. Email: mozzie23@skymesh.com.au  

(9321) Janette Sullivan ................................................................................. Email: janettesullivan@bigpond.com   

(5225) Meg Hammond ................................................................................. Email: meghammond@tadaust.org.au  

(5233) Margaret Hope ................................................................................. Email: hopemarg@internode.on.net 

(5277) Ken and Gwen Knox .......................................................................... Email: kandgknox@bigpond.com 

(10336) Cheryl Stokes .................................................................................. Email: gumboots@aapt.net.au  

(5200) Gloria Wilks ....................................................................................... Email: douglorw@netspace.net.au  

(11357) Elaine Howard ................................................................................. Email: howweb@bigpond.com 

(10337) Marilyn Boyd ................................................................................... Email: marilyn.boyd@bigpond.com   

(10335) Marg Magnusson ............................................................... Email: megmago@yahoo.com.au 

   

mailto:mozzie23@skymesh.com.au
mailto:janettesullivan@bigpond.com
mailto:meghammond@tadaust.org.au
file:///F:/PHT/hopemarg@internode.on.net
mailto:kandgknox@bigpond.com
mailto:gumboots@aapt.net.au
mailto:douglorw@netspace.net.au
mailto:howweb@bigpond.com
mailto:marilyn.boyd@bigpond.com
mailto:megmago@yahoo.com.au
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ORDER FORM AND TAX INVOICE 
 

PIONEER REGISTER-PRE 1920 
 

Please use this form if you wish to order the Pioneer Register 
 

/ƻǎǘ ǇŜǊ ōƻƻƪΧΧ Ϸо0 plus $13 postage & handling 
 The price includes GST where appropriate. 

 
 
bǳƳōŜǊ ƻŦ .ƻƻƪǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘΧΧΧ !Ƴƻǳƴǘ ƻŦ tŀȅƳŜƴǘ ŜƴŎƭƻǎŜŘΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 

 
Name   ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 
 
Mailing Address ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 

 
ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 

 
Phone or email address . ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 
     

Please make payment by Cheque or Money Order 
 

 
Send completed form and payment to: 
 

Pioneer Register 
Milton Ulladulla Family History Society Inc. 
PO Box 619  
Ulladulla NSW 2539 Australia 

 
 
For further details please contact: 
President: Elaine Holloway  02 4454 2217 
Secretary: Cheryl Stokes     02 4454 0394 
 
 

 
 

Office Use 
 
 wŜŎŜƛǇǘ bǳƳōŜǊΥ ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 
 .ƻƻƪόǎύ {ŜƴǘΥ ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 
 
 {ƛƎƴŀǘǳǊŜΥ ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 
 
 


